
1. You Thought — Hoenn

Summary for the Chapter:
            A plan to eliminate some human refugees goes horrifically awry.

          


    
    Secondary Interview Station

 145 Cycles After Initial Contact

 65 Cycles After Establishment

 Record #189, as given by Eyewitness Stozay Ballaxyn: Sniper, Sole Surviver of the Red-Green Corps, Sole Surviving Witness to the Destruction of Walker-Tank Crew 45

 Transcribed/edited by Supreme District Stenographer Xiinur Gog



As ordered, I am relaying the events surrounding the destruction of my team and…of my team and…and…and the rest of the Southern Island disaster. High Command wishes for me to relay the entire incident, beginning with the initial commands.



We received our orders 5 cycles ago. High Command had reason to believe in the existence of a human refugees encampment on a small island to the south.



The island, once of some local import, used to house a community of humans. While High Command initially believed the Y-class bombing had cleared the local life, radio and satellite communications were noted near the vicinity. The exact nature of the communications were not relayed to us. We were ordered to find them and eliminate their originators.



Further investigations by High Command indicated the communications were not from the original human habitat, but a nearby cavern. The cavern was believed to be natural in creation. Due to the darkness and uneven ground within the cavern, as well as limited knowledge of how many humans currently inhabited the island, High Command sent a squad of Walker Tanks [Walker Tank Team 45—Xiinur] to clear the area. My sniper team [Red-Green Corps—Xiinur] was to support them. Records from scouting equipment [Class 8 drone scan, Class Blue probe readings, Class 3 satellite scan — Xiinur] suggested the cavern would provide little cover beyond its natural darkness, so the likelihood of my team providing much support is…was, questionable. Orders are orders, though, and if High Command believed the Walker Tanks could use snipers in close quarters, we certainly would not refuse them.



I was eager to go. Taking down human—or any—civilians wears after a while. Combat with the unarmed always does. A change of scenery would be most welcome and provide a source of variety and entertainment, even if the actual task was an exercise in formality rather than strategy. Besides, special operations always provide opportunity for the industrious. I ignorantly, foolishly, expectantly foresaw an easy means of social escalation with this and perhaps two or three more such exertions.



My team accompanied Walker Tank Team 45 four cycles ago. The seas, unlike those encountered in the eastern [report edited and censored per Silent Order 186—Xiinur].  



The ocean was calm and, thankfully, unoccupied, so we landed as planned. A brief scouting foray revealed the satisfactorily destroyed ruins of the space humans had the gall to call a city. The former dwellings were unfit for occupation, but showed signs of scavenging. Several metal objects were missing key components and human tracks were recent and widespread. Many came and returned from the direction of the cavern. After the initial sweep revealed no refugees, the teams planed to continue toward the cavern, as ordered, the following cycle.



We suffered no casualties or even encounters en route to the cavern and expected an easy assignment. We thought the lack of trouble was a good indication of survival. We were ignorant to the point of pity.



The entrance to the cavern was fairly open and well-lit. They were also occupied. Not by humans, although there were ample signs of them—mostly in the form of manufactured stairs and pathways.



No, we did not see humans. We were not greeted by foes eager for slaughter or opportunities for easy kills. We were greeted by life. Life on the wing. BLUE life on the wing [Stozay is from the 14th Quadrant. According to local custom, flying life is regarded an omen. Blue flyers are supposedly a warning of impeding death and/or disaster—Xiinur]. We should have taken their warning. The blue flyers did not flee us. They surrounded us, called to us, warned us of the disaster to come They stayed when all other wildlife fled. They continued to call their strange, disorienting omens. They cried warnings of our frailty. Our mortality.



We refused them. We had orders.



In the lower regions, we saw them. Not the humans.



The lights.



The reflective lights.



At first we believed they were merely reflections from the Walker-Tanks’ high-beams on crystal or reflective surfaces in the cavern. But they moved, irregularly and in pairs. Low to the ground. None were above my second leg-joint. They did not move quickly, but still they retreated from the beams before we could take a proper look at them. We slowly realized they were eyes. Eyes that reflected our lights in the dark.



Since they continued to avoid the sweeping beams, our Commander assumed they were timid and would not challenge our weaponry and numbers. He was wrong. He ordered us forward, but they were not intimidated. They were not afraid. They were planning. They were preparing.



The first strike took us by surprise. We thought it was another example of a sort of low-quality ammunition the humans somehow built. It was not. It was the lights. They were attached to a small quadruped, metallic gray in color. It lunged and…and…and it…lunged…



My apologies, but the disaster is so bizarre and tragic. I see it in my sleep every night. But the events do not cease to be strange or sorrowful.



The tiny creature struck the leg of a Walker Tank, and the Walker fell to the ground. As it crumpled, my team unleashed our weapons on the being. Our weapons failed. I know I struck the creature multiple times, but my shots were deflected off of it. Even my armor-piercers ricocheted with a merely sparks indicating I struck the beings.



Yes, beings.



Even as we tried to stop the first attack, we heard the sound of another Walker falling. Then another. Then another. Within moments, the creatures took down the entire team. But they were not finished.



They began…they started…they…they began to eat.



They devoured the armor of the Walkers, then dove for the circuitry. We could hear the pilots screaming over our shots and the beings’ crunching. Attracted by the sound of distressed prey, more and more of the attackers appeared.



The beings turned their attention to the life support systems. The cries faded. One of the beings, still ignoring my shots, glanced up. Its eyes seemed to take up half the creature’s head. They were…blue. The color of death. The color of the warning that came to us before we plunged into this dark hole of tragedy and disaster.



Desperate to save the last pilot, the Commander tried to pry an attacker from the Walker. It was heavier than expected. As he tried to pull it away from the sparking life support, the creature bit him…and realized he was wearing metal armor.



I’m not sure how the beings communicated, but every one of them seemed to realize we were prey at the same moment. The slow, casual rage they showed the Walkers was turned towards us. We were out of ammo, not that it could have saved us, and we were too stunned by the loss of the Walkers to run. The initial attack broke the ankle of my Commander. My teammates followed. Some died as their life support was devoured. Many more, I suspect, bled out from their shattered carapaces. Only I and another sniper escaped by leaping onto boulders where the beings could not follow. One grabbed at my rifle as I jumped, but I pulled my weapon free and it could not pursue. Low to the ground, the beings could not spring as high as we could. Our long legs and desire to flee saved us when weapons and strategy failed.



We ran toward the cavern’s entrance. As we fled, the blue flyers returned, screaming their warnings. I thought I heard my team’s voices in their echoing cries. I became completely disoriented with the yells surrounding me. I stumbled and crashed into the ground, but managed to keep moving with the flyers’ omens ringing in my ears and mingling with my horror. My teammate was deeply affected by the cries. He lunged, claiming one of the metal-eaters was at his heels, although we were alone.



I thought.



His screams attracted another cave dweller.



Humans were in the cavern, after all. They managed to shoot him as we fled. How many of them existed in the cavern, I do not know. How they survived in the beings’ den, I do not know. Perhaps this is why we found so few humans with armor in the cities? Because of these creatures? Because of these devourers? These destroyers?



I will never…I CAN never…forget them.



I got as far away from the cavern as I could go. I had my damaged rifle, but no ammunition or will to return. Just three flares. The rescue team found me after the first two burned out.



Some have asked me my intentions. Whether I will join another sniper core or attempt to take leave. I do not care. High Command itself could ask me to walk into the eastern sea without life support, and I would go willingly. As long as I never return to that cavern of the deathly blue eyes. Nothing will ever convince me to go back. Nothing…



[Stozay has been ordered to remain on interrogation leave until High Command reviews this record, as well as the information collected from his rescuers.



 Additional leave recommended for medical reasons, as Stozay continues to signs of disorientation and trauma.



 Review of the teams’ transportation records to be enclosed.



 Monitoring of human communications from the island continuing, as ordered, although no further attempts have been made to inspect the cavern.



 I recommend reviewing Stozay’s rifle, which was retrieved by his rescuers. The weapon is slated for recycling due to stock damaged, initially believed to be caused by the thrashing of its owner. However, on closer examination, I have reason to believe in a different origin of the damage. The stock shows a clear, semi-circular loss of material. The edges of the damage show signs of denticle abrasion.



 It is a BITE mark—Xiinur].





Aron has a body of steel. With one all-out charge, this Pokémon can demolish even a heavy dump truck. The destroyed dump truck then becomes a handy meal for the Pokémon. —Professor Birch, late Professor of Hoenn.

  
Notes for the Chapter:
          This is my first attempt at a long fanfic. Comments and suggestions are greatly appreciated.

        




2. You Thought — Sinnoh

Summary for the Chapter:
            A medic insists she is not at fault for the mysterious deaths of three Generals in the former Sinnoh region. Xiinur has doubts.

          
Notes for the Chapter:Much thanks to my glorious beta readers for improving my work! Please let me know what you think (it will help me with future chapters).




    
    Primary Interview Station

 150 Cycles After Initial Contact

 70 Cycles After Establishment

 Record #280, as given by Defendant Dryaw Tuen: Primary Medic, Accused of Gross Negligence Resulting in Multiple Misapplications of Medical Aid 

 Transcribed/edited by Supreme District Stenographer Xiinur Gog

 

 This isn’t my fault. I don’t understand why I’m here. You have my records. You have no case. I don’t know why you want me here. I have work to do. You can’t [the defendant continued to speak on similar lines for 28 microcycles. A reminder of punishment for failure to comply with Legal Order 29 returned her statements to the original inquiry—Xiinur].

 

 FINE. I will comply. As ordered.

 

 I am relaying the events surrounding the deaths of Generals Gher Sliath [formerly of the Company 86—Xiinur], Auncha Freth [formerly of the Yellow-Blue Corps—Xiinur], and Quana Wer [formerly of the Red-Blue Corps—Xiinur].

 

 I will include the location of my examinations. As ordered.

 

 My office is located within the ruins of a location the humans once had the gall to call a city. While most of the buildings were appropriately uninhabitable, a series of walls remained standing. The medical team [her team, Medical Group 21—Xiinur] chose to use the remains of these walls as additional structures for the pre-fabricated clinic, since they were fairly strong and in an ideal location. The site was, apparently, a botanical facility. Humans originally used it to keep grass, flowers, and other fauna for pleasure and education. As if they were capable of learning anything. Anyway, the facility provided a stable, constant supply of clean water—despite our military’s best efforts—so we decided to use it. Also, t was near the center of the typical tri-structure of the Generals’ three groups, so they could easily reach my team as necessary. I will now tell you the events of the Generals’ coming. As ordered.

 

 General Bher Sliath arrived first, complaining about—what? FINE. I will include WHEN he arrived. As ordered.

 

 Three cycles ago, Gher Sliath arrived at my medical facility. His chief complaint was about the actions of his fellow generals. No, that’s not why he arrived. The three generals [Gher, Auncha, and Quana—Xiinur] met at my facility, as ordered, to discuss a conflict of some upcoming campaign or other [the scrapped Yellow Moon Project—Xiinur]. They decided the former botanical facility was private enough for them to meet in.

 

 I will now describe his visit. As ordered.

 

 A few microcycles—no I do not know how many—a few microcyles before the talk formally began, General Gher Sliath arrived at my facility with an injured first leg-joint. He had, apparently, injured himself while walking on the grounds. He mentioned something about a large plant. It was a simple injury, just a series of small punctures on the joint, probably caused by trampling through some plant thorns on the grounds. He had some pink and blue plant parts attached to his armor, probably caused by stomping through the botanical garden. I applied a disinfectant and a leg wrap.

No, I did not perform a toxicology exam. He was fine. YES, I know he died that evening from some form of poison. He was clearly assassinated. What? NO, I don’t have proof. I don’t need proof of the obvious. What do you mean, it was a local poison? That doesn’t change anything. The locals would want him dead; he ruined their almost-city. It had to be humans! [The defendant was alerted to the fact that no humans had lived in the tri-structure for at least fifty cycles—Xiinur]. The assessments are wrong, a human had to have given him the poison that evening. There was no way a poison given to him that morning would kill him that night. The autopsy droid [see attached M-Class Droid Assessment 1469—Xiinur] traced it back to the leg wounds? Those things are always wrong! One claimed toxins were in the plants of  in this stupid planet. Another claimed an airborne infection affected the lungs of one of my nurses. You can’t actually trust any of those stupid machines.

 

 No, I did not recommend a follow-up. Why would I need a follow-up to an exaggerated skin abrasion? What? No, it’s not protocol [this statement is in conflict with Medical Follow-Up Protocol 972—Xiinur]. No, I have nothing more to say about Gher [the defendant refused to provide any further information, breaking Interrogation Order 15. See attached punishment recommendations—Xiinur].

 

 I’ll continue to General Auncha. As ordered.

 

 She came in less than 20 microcycles after Gher left. I don’t have an exact time. There’s no reason for me to record when a patient of the General class enters [this statement is in direct conflict with Medical Record Protocol 76, which commands medical staff to note the exact time of entry for General class patients—Xiinur]. She just came in with a leg injury. Yes, it was similar to Gher. No, I didn’t think it was unusual. They were in the same location. She was covered with pink and blue flowers, so she undoubtedly stomped through the same shrubbery. I gave her the same treatment. No, I didn’t offer a follow-up. Of course I know she died that night. Frankly, I’m surprised she lasted that long.

 

 I am aware she was not sickly. But did you check the autopsy? She died of respiratory paralysis. She was from an industry-heavy quadrant [Quardrent 28, which is indeed known for its industry, particularly in metal forming and shaping—Xiinur] and a history of smoking angel glass. Either of those could have easily caused—well, of course I know the usual effects are gradual, she just had the bad luck of it going critical. What? The autopsy droid [see attached M-Class Droid Assessment 1470—Xiinur]? I already told you those things are unreliable.

 

 You think it’s odd they concluded the source of the “toxin” was from the injury? It was the same one that screwed up Gher’s autopsy! It would show the same mistake! It would focus on the injury, no matter the actual cause. What do you mean, they’ve already been re-assessed? It doesn’t matter, all medical droids will make the same—wait, by another medic? In the northern region? He’ll screw it up, too! I know people like him, they just copy the same record the droid makes…what? No I don’t know him personally, but he [the defendant continued to lambast a peer, despite warnings that this broke Protocol 19886, Regarding Accusations Toward A Professional, for 45 microcycles. See attached punishment recommendations—Xiinur].

 

 I will now relay what I know about the death of General Quana Wer. As ordered.

 

 She came in shortly after Auncha. Why would I know what time? She just came in with a leg injury. Yes it was the same, including the pink and blue flower bits—I did the same—what are you trying to prove? She died from a sedative overdose.

 

 I. Don’t. Care. What. The. Droid. Says. [See attached M-Class Droid Assessment 1471—Xiinur]. She stole some of our supplies and drugged herself. What? I don’t need proof. Soldiers come here for drugs all the time. She could have easily taken some while she was on site. Of course we keep it locked! But people break locks all the time! There is no way a shallow wound from some thorns could have injected her with the drug. She did this herself! She had to have [the defentant was alerted that she was committing an M-class slander against a superior officer and would be punished. She protested this for an additional 50 microcycles. See attached punishment recommendations—Xiinur].

 

 I am going to summarize the day’s events regarding the generals. As ordered. They all came in after walking through a weedy mess of a botanical park. They all had the same wounds. They all died from completely unrelated toxins. I will give my assessment as a Primary Medic. As ordered.

 

 Their deaths are not related.  

 

 They could not have originated from the same source.

 

 It is not possible.

 

 [The defendant, Dryaw Tuen, proved to be as emotional, imprecise, paranoid, difficult to work with, and slanderous as accused. Undoubtably, her ineptness caused her to miss vital information that lead to the demise of three valuable members of the military and likely more unreported individuals. Her dismissal of equipment and fellow medics has been acknowledged before, as shown in Trial Blue-10974, but this degree of slander, disregard for protocol, and disrespect to her peers and superiors demands action.

 

 Trial for Gross Negligence highly recommended.

 

 Immediate removal from the Medical Team 21 highly recommended.

 

 Probation from all Medical staff highly recommended.

 

 Punishment Recommendation Files 703, 704,and 705 enclosed.

 

 M-Class Droid Assessments 1469, 1470, 1471 enclosed. 

 

 Autopsy assessments from Primary Medic Mev V’sueb of Medical Group 56 enclosed—Xiinur].

 

[Requesting personal leave for 3 macrocycles due to strain of recording and finding records. Attached finished Form 31—Personal Leave File. 

 

 Awaiting assessment. As ordered—Xiinur].



 Roserade: Each of its hands contains different toxins, but both hands can jab with near-fatal power.—Professor Rowen, currently imprisoned in Sinnoh.

  



3. You Thought — Unova

Summary for the Chapter:
            The conquerors discover Pokémon hate drones.

          
Notes for the Chapter:Much thanks to my glorious beta readers for (yet again) improving my work (and deleting annoying clicks—inside joke)! Please let me know what you think (it will help me with future chapters).




    
    Primary Interview Station

 175 Cycles After Initial Contact

 95 Cycles After Establishment

 Record #560, as given by Chief Engineer Irrik Luzara: Chief Engineer of the Blue-Green Corps, Drone Devision, Regarding the Loss of 15 Experimental Multipurpose Drones

 Transcribed/edited by Supreme District Stenographer Xiinur Gog

 

 As ordered, I am here, to report on the abrupt and unexpected loss of…of…of…[it took 32 microcycles for the subject to stop sobbing. A hydration ration was offered to and accepted by the subject. A mild sedation solution was also offered, but the subject refused—Xiinur].

 

 I am okay. I am okay. I apologize. This loss just stuck me very, very personally. My dame and grand-dame were both engineers who specialized in drones as well, so this failure…it, well, it feels like I have not only failed High Command, but disappointed all the efforts and passions of my predecessors.

 

 What? Yes, I know High Command has no intention of pursuing legal ramifications. I know this interview is not accusatory. I just can’t believe three generations’ worth of effort and work could be downed within a macrocycle. All the cycles of work, all the sleepless nights, all the expectations of my line just…in one…click…click…[subject was immediately offered a 5-microcyle break to compose himself. Sedation solution again offered. Subject refused—Xiinur].

 

 Okay. I am okay. Let us try to get you the information you came for.

 

 I am the Chief Engineer of the Blue-Green Corps, Drone Devision, currently located to the far east. While some human settlements were once near my Corps’ home location, the site was and is, for all practical purposes, rural. As such, it it both useful and necessary to utilize AI-guided military, scouting, and attacking mechanics. Due to the ongoing need for such automation, High Command also saw fit to encourage experimentation, particularly in the use of droids and drones.  

 

 Drones are steadily becoming more and more necessary, as our military continues to uncover…less habitable aspects of this planet. Such areas are too vast to leave unattended, but also too…well, our military forces can be utilized more efficiently if High Command has a better sense of the exact nature of certain areas, particularly given some…unexpected…aggressive…occupants of certain landscapes [subject reminded of Silent Order 186 and Silent Order 251, and directed to focus on the nature of his particular expertise in regard to the interview—Xiinur].

 

 Yes, yes. Of course. Where was I? Ah, yes.

 

 I, like my predecessors, specialized in drones, particularly those designed for scouting and assessing potential areas for conquest. My skills were in high demand with established drones, but High Command saw fit to allow me experimentation. The area I am assigned is mountainous with numerous large cascades. We needed a drone that could effectively navigate, scan, and attack in both air and water-based environments. I had taken the plans originally crafted by my grand-dame, perfected by my dame, and began to build. I will never regret my choice to take part in the active military, but I grew up watching my predecessors work on these plans. I will always love experimenting. It reminds me so much of the two of them, so…so…[subject requested another five microcycles to refocus. Mild sedation solution offered and refused. Fifteen microcycles later, the subject was ready to continue—Xiinur].

 

 Pardon, but their loss continues to disturb me. Their plans remind me of my relations constantly…constantly…they just…just…[subject continued before sedation solution could be offered—Xiinur]. So building the drones seemed to take almost no effort at all, even though finishing them within High Commands schedule was difficult. Finding the proper materials also proved complicated, since the drones require [exact materials and composition of drones edited per Silent Order 22—Xiinur]. The composition of the drones prevented the team and I from creating any more than 15 drones. They were beautiful, ideal, and ready as planned. Controlled environment testing proved promising, but the constantly shifting air and water currents in an outdoor setting concerned our supervisors, especially considering the drones’ planned use in mountainous locations, which are infamous for their changing thermals. Further tests were needed.

 

 The local mountains seemed like an ideal testing location. We went out, two macrocycles ago, with all fifteen drones out for a field test. The test would not only provide valuable data, but provide our supervisors with the opportunity to display our capacities for High Command’s benefit.

 

 Testing in the mountains’ cascades delighted all involved. The drones maneuvered and scanned excellently underwater, even under areas of high water tension and pressure. However, our supervisors noted displeasure with our use of stationary, manufactured targets for the attacking portions of the test. Determined to provide a better example of our efforts, the team decided to find a better target for the air tests.

 

 We found one. We though it would  be perfect. We thought we would prove our mettle. We…we thought…we…[approximatedly 24 microcycles, two hydration rations, and another refused offer of a mild sedation solution later, the subject was ready to continue—Xiinur].

 

 A trio of small, feathered beings were roosting on a cliff near where the Blue-Green Corps was camped. We thought they would be an easy kill. While the dark talons at the end of their yellow legs were quite thick, their wings, which were grayish, were stubby. The white ruffs around their heads and necks would provide an excellent target for the drones’ scanners. The beings would not be able to escape our drones’ weapons, and the resulting flurry of grey and white feathers would undoubtably impress our viewers.

 

 All fifteen drones went out in perfect formation, navigating the shifting currents of the cliffs beautifully. They approached the nearest of the trio, which started to bawl. Then, just as the targeting system came on-line, the feathered being received an answer. While the target’s screams were short, more like barks than anything else, the responding cry was longer, more drawn out. It sounded more like an engine revving than a living being, but a living being it was.

 

 It, like the targets, was feathered. Its wings were massive, though. Easily a third again as wide as the drones. Its back was red, its underparts were blue, and legs as thick as the drones…as the drones…drones…[subject was ordered to continue giving his testimony, or punishments would ensue as recommended by Insolent Order 70. He took approximately 2 microcycles to compose himself. He refused a sedation solution—Xiinur]. The legs were as thick as the drones’ central structure. Four claws, three in front, one in back, armed each of the two feet. A ruff of white, blue, and red feathers adorned the head, which also sported an enormous yellow beak.

 

 With another call, it…it…[subject almost started sobbing again, but composed himself when he noticed the nearby punishment files—Xiinur]. The being plunged its talons into the first drone, which collapsed instantly under it. Damaged, it lost its flight capacities and fell to the valley below. While the team watched it fall, the being turned its attention to the next drone. Then the next. While the drones attempted to retaliate, the being glided between them, seemingly uncaring about the superior firepower of the drones. It had no reason to worry. It caught another two before we realized what was happening. The team tried to recall the remaining ten, but the being pursued—capturing, crushing, and dropping them, one by one.

 

 It caught the last one as the drone arched over the team. Instead of letting it fall, the being flew it back towards the original trio. Someone kept crying that the beings were going to eat the drone’s remains. Another shouted that they were tearing it apart. Someone else screamed denials, that this could not be happening. Not here. Not to us. Not to these drones. I do not know the complete fate of the final drone. I fainted and did not come to until we got back to the camp.

 

 [Subject was escorted back to holding until further notice. It does not seem the Blue-Green Corps is to blame for the failure of the drones, although the loss of the materials and time involved make it very unlikely High Command will request their services again.

 

 Recommending a double leave for Irrik. His emotional state is highly unstable, and he will likely need physical, mental, and possibly chemical therapy before he is of use to the team again—Xiinur].

 

 [Enclosed is a filled, personal request for Inquisitor Privileges 1376: Regarding the Involuntary Sedation of an Uncooperative Subject—Xiinur].

  

Braviary:  They fight for their friends without any thought about danger to themselves. One can carry a car while flying.—Professor Juniper, currently imprisoned in Unova.

  



4. You Thought — Alola

Summary for the Chapter:
            In which we discover why no-one is allowed to talk about the Eastern Sea.

          
Notes for the Chapter:This one’s a bit darker, just in case someone was tempted to feel sorry for our alien overlords.

Special thanks to Shadowboxmind and Pixel3r for their amazing beta-reading skills.




    
    *Data in this interview for historical purposes and strategical planning only.*



**Observers of this data must have a clearance level of 0-2871 or higher as ordered under Silent Order 186. Failure to comply with this order will result in immediate demotion of rank, imprisonment of at least 10 megacycles, and/or fines in excess of 500,000 rations.**



Primary Interview Station

40 Cycles After Initial Contact

Record #125 — Re-established as Silent Order 186 Record #15 — as given by Eyewitness Kax Tias, Alpha General, Captain of High Command Ship Green 47, Sole Surviving Commander of Plan Red-Gold 73

Transcribed/edited by Supreme District Stenographer Xiinur Gog





So, High Command finally sent someone? Good. Good. They need to know. They need to know what happened. What we encountered. We need a plan to stop it. We need protocol. We need control. Or we will fail. We will lose this planet. And every unit with it. We have to prepare. We have to prepare. We have to. Now. Immediately. [The subject became increasingly paranoid and agitated. She accepted a mild sedative solution. She was ready to continue after 6 microcycles—Xiinur].



I’m glad you came to see me.



Approximately twenty cycles ago, High Command saw fit to send my ship, the Daybreak Crusader [designation Ship Green 47—Xiinur] on assignment. I know I am not supposed to deviate from our ship’s designation, but I would prefer to continue calling it by it’s creation name. They say there is power and good fortune in using the name. Creators know, I could use it.



Hmm?



Considering my current hospital stay, past…events…and future prospects, I am willing to commit to superstition. I’m not sure if much else can help me now. But you are right. I will stay on topic.



Our mission was to assess oceanic trade routes in the eastern seas. While High Command was already making movements in the political realm, we certainly understood the value of a military presence along vital currents and trafficked waters. Such information has proved invaluable in previous conquests. I made my ranking in such missions, you know, and was naturally eager for more. While I will never tire of naval battle, the discovery aspect of a new mission will always thrill me. Even after what happened…[subject paused, looking reflective. Before a new line of inquiry could begin, she continued—Xiinur].



The seas were calm. Air temperature, humidity, and water movement were warm, ideal, and calm. After approximately two cycles, I and the others found signs of habitation, though I’m not certain of the species [reports filed three cycles prior to the interview found these sites to be those of humans, apparently the sole sentient species of this planet—Xiinur]. Most of the harbors were small, and I suspect more for entertainment or leisure than trading, so I continued the mission. The space between the islands lengthened, and I began to find indicators of the information I sought.



Five cycles after the start of our mission, the sea began to host large vessels laden with boxed containers of goods. The boats, powered by fossil-fuel burning engines, were usually fixed with primitive detection equipment, typically in the form of basic, orbital-satellite based GPS or basic radar. My ship easily traced them without being detected. At this point, I and the other captains [Captain Iahatt Urrax of High Command Ship Blue 27 and Captain Ormora Th’rath of High Command Ship Red 972—Xiinur] met on the Daybreak Crusader to discuss appropriate strategies. Two were more appealing than all others.



I and the other captains could either select one of the vessels and follow it, gathering information on its route by tracking it while staying out of the detection of its limited equipment, or take a more proactive approach and capture the vessel and whatever maps and tracking were onboard. High Command wanted to avoid unnecessary confrontations [per Outworld Order 4978—Xiinur], but following the ship would take a lot of time with limited information for the effort. It would also be more difficult to avoid detection, especially as the vessel came closer to port. A quick capture, by contrast, would likely reward me and the others with information on several routes. Due to the primitive nature of the vessels’ build, any attempt to contact assistance could be easily foiled or, even better, used to attract other ships for capture. Therefore, the latter plan was deemed more than worth the risk.



It worked beautifully.



The first vessel’s capture felt like a training exercise. Our communications blockade effortlessly stalled all cries for help. The crew was barely armed and contained no warriors. The native beings, bipedal, nearly hairless mammals, possessed almost no natural defenses. The crews searched the vessel thoroughly. I and the others left none alive on that first ship. I and the crews had maps, physical and digital, as well as ideal bait for the next vessel. I ordered the crew to send out copies of the ship’s initial cries for help through a short-range alert with the ship’s own communications and immediately attracted the next victim. Then the next. I and the other captains sank the vessels after taking their navigation. As ordered, all natives were killed before setting the next trap [Anti-Detection Order 12—Xiinur], but if one or two of the ship’s occupants managed to evade us during the looting, it was easier to just leave them on the sinking ship.



To save ammunition.



On the last two ships, I and the other captains allowed a living native to cry out during the baiting communication, adding a…well, a sense of authenticity, shall I say? They still got to sink with their vessel. Best to keep all the evidence together, right?



After looting and destroying five vessels this way, one of the captains—I think it was Iahatt?—suggested keeping some of the next crew alive. The navigator and the captain, ideally. They might be able to provide more information than their vessels would, especially given the right…motivation. This plan had the approval of everyone. I and the other captains were ready to present more thorough routes than the maps could provide, and a native might provide direction to the next hunting ground.



Much to my surprise, the next vessel was not a tradeship. Nor was it a naval vessel. It was a bizarre, long ship, gray in color with a bow molded like a primitive face, though it was not the same species as the sailors. Some animal, perhaps? Anyway, it hailed the “sinking vessel” and offered to help. This floating gray toy was even more poorly armed than the other ships. It did not even have a proper crew. It looked more like a floating house for a family or two of the mammals.



I and the other captains captured the ship and sank it after bringing her crew aboard the deck of the Daybreak Crusader. After so many cycles on the water some of the crew were…eager for action. Even the armed vessels—and I use that term very, very loosely—left several of our shipmates longing for a proper battle. After grilling the eldest of the native crew, I and the other captains decided to allow the warriors to take their time with the remainder.



It could barely be called a fight, but it got some activity for the crews, especially when one of the natives threw a device. At first, the crews feared it was some sort of primitive explosive, but instead of a burst of flame or glow of plasma, it released a white, feathered being with a large  yellow beak. The one who threw it begged for it to fly and get away, but of course our crews would not permit that. I and the others were not about to risk the secrecy I spent so much time preserving, and this flyer could alert the natives. The rest of the captives were searched for similar devices. Many had them, and they were destroyed before they could be cast. Their holders were similarly exterminated without issue. Except the last one.



An exceptionally tiny being, likely pre-pubescent, managed to throw hers onto the deck. One of my personal guards saw what came out. And laughed. I and the rest of the crews soon followed suite.



The creature had no limbs, no claws, no teeth, no wings. It was barely the size of its caster’s foot. And it had large, watery eyes that seemed to shimmer with tears. The upper part of the body was darker than the underparts, I think. Anyway, we eliminated the caster, but the cast being managed to flop into the sea. It was too small to be of any additional concern. I and the other captains were about to give new next orders.



Then I and the others heard it.



Then the detection equipment blared an alert.



Another being materialized directly underneath the ship.



I am fully aware of how fantastic this sounds. However, I swear by my rank and legacy what I tell you is true. It did not come to us. It appeared. The watchers, the equipment detected nothing in the water until just then. And what they detected!



An enormous, glittering mass of muscle and teeth had appeared out of the water. It was alive, this apparition without an origin. And it had its choice of targets.



It paused, as if assessing the three naval vessels. After a moment that lasted entirely too long, it seemed to focus on the Daybreak Crusader. Then it dissolved as quickly as it appeared…only to reform directly under Ormora’s vessel. With a terrifying screech of metal snapping, it broke through the hull. The ship shattered along the burst mid-seam. I saw the crew scramble toward the lifeboats, only to see the shining being gather and release an enormous wave of water that swept over all of them and the sad, sinking remainder of the once-proud vessel. Without speaking to each other, I and the other captains immediately ordered the remaining ships to flee this wave-wielding ghost. Yes, I called it a ghost. It appeared and disappeared without obeying the laws of physics. It was supernatural. Nothing can ever convince me otherwise. Ever.



Before the Waves’ Treachery [designation High Command Ship Blue 27—Xiinur] could send the alert, it, too was struck. I doubt any of the crew made it to the lifeboats before a similar wave took it out. I ordered everyone aboard the Daybreak Crusader to double their efforts to get away. After half a macrocycle, we no longer found the being on our detection equipment, so foolishly, ignorantly, stupidly, we thought we escaped.



A cycle later, it found us again. It did not attack, though. It appeared and we immediately sped away. It faded from our equipment. After this first alarm, I and the captains ordered a triple watch on the detection units. I would not be caught off-guard.



I and the others were anyway, two cycles afterwards.



It appeared, assessed, and did not fade. It focused and struck the lower hull. It was like…it was like [the subject took approximately 2 microcycles to compose herself—Xiinur].



When I was a Private, I served under Captain Nius when he struck a rock near the training fields. I thought I would never experience anything like it. The way a multi-thousand unit vessel stopped suddenly. The screech of metal twisting and cracking. The shuddering strain of the engine futilely trying to drive us forward. The sound of water rushing in our ship. The rush of the crew in a chaotic scramble to save themselves. Nothing, I was utterly convinced, could ever equal to that wreck.



This did.



Shining blue teeth pierced the metal armor of the hull. Water rushed in the twisted gaps made by its teeth. We lost the majority of our steering equipment in the first blow. Several of the crew were caught in the teeth and metal debris in the second. One of the captains, I do not remember and I do not care who, started to give orders to pump the water out. But I remembered what happened to the other vessels. I had planned ahead.



I, with the remaining navigators, my personal guard, and the ship’s recorder went to the prepared lifeboat I ordered ready after the creature’s reappearance two cycles before. The boat, equipped with copies of all the maps we acquired, as well as additional rations and power engines, took off as the being began to push. As the boat pulled away, we could hear the rhythm of the ghost’s great tail pulsing back and forth, pushing the ship down. I ordered the boat to leave at an angle of the beast. It summoned its wave to erase the Daybreak Crusader, but we were no longer near it. Which is not to say we escaped cleanly. One of the navigators, loyal to his original captain, attempted to pull back. I had to kill him to maintain order on the boat. His struggle cost me my upper right leg, but I maintained control.



Then came the trials of survival. I and the others kept dreading the return of Arch Z’us’ Ward [a being from a 2nd Quadrant mythology. Supposedly a sea deity of death with an indistinct appearance and ability to summon waves and storms—Xiinur]. The detection equipment noted several similar appearances and disappearances, but we were spared his fury. I still had to deal with the problems of weather and unfamiliar waves. Despite the rations, dehydration began setting in. I began the Captain’s Recall [Survival Order 56: Regarding the Elimination of Excess Crew in the Event of Limited Resources—Xiinur], beginning with the recorder and working through the guard [this follows the standard set by Survival Order 56—Xiinur]. The cycles bled together, but we were found by one of the scouting crews eventually. I delivered the maps, remaining navigator, and last guards, then was sent to the hospital ward [Medical Unit 345—Xiinur] for my leg and dehydration.



And here you are. Waiting for my input.



I have told you what happened. I let you know we are against something aggressive and undetectable. What do you intend to do?



[Records taken from human ships enclosed.



Records from High Command Ship Green 47 enclosed.



Records from Medical Unit 345 enclosed.



While evidence and testimonies alike reveal Captain Kax acted in an exemplary method, rumors of the disaster have already spread. In addition, most of her surviving crew imply she began Survival Order 56 too soon. While there is no evidence of this, the statements and stories have reached most of the navy. It is unlikely she will find a new crew willing to follower her. Naval personnel approached with the prospect refused adamantly, almost mutinously. Therefore, it is recommended that she be assigned to a quadrant beyond the naysay of this planet.



The extent of the loss of confidence by the naval crews is disheartening. It has also begun to spread through aerial and land-based units. Reports indicate talk of military personnel plotting open rebellion if ordered to enter the Eastern Seas. We cannot risk a blow to moral or leadership confidence of this magnitude before we begin our planned attacks. Nor can we accept this eagerness to resist qualified leadership and mutiny.



Silence order designation recommended for all the Eastern Sea operations between the 10th and 40th cycles of initial contact. This is our best means to preserve order, reestablish leadership credence, and maintain organization. 



Recommending military action be limited to aerial attacks and transport within the Eastern Sea area until this “ghost” can be identified and eliminated—Xiinur].



Wishiwashi: It’s awfully weak and notably tasty, so everyone is always out to get it. As it happens, anyone trying to bully it receives a painful lesson.—Professor Kukui, currently missing in action. Last seen in Alola.

  



5. You Thought—Johto

Summary for the Chapter:
            Good aliens don’t drink and drive, especially in wooded areas.

          
Notes for the Chapter:I finally emerge with a new chapter.

Special thanks to the always amazing Shadowboxmind and Pixel3r for beta reading my chapter!




    
    Secondary Interview Station

 183 Cycles After Initial Contact

 103 Cycles After Establishment

 Record #259, as given by Eyewitness Stisa Zaix: Senior Assessment Engineer of the Western Region

 Transcribed/edited by Supreme District Stenographer Xiinur Gog

 

 As ordered, I am relayin’ the circumstances surroundin’ the loss of 53 terrestrial vehicles and the loss of Iaggixx [The Former Master Engineer of the Western Region—Xiinur]. It star—what do you mean “as well as”? Wait! Why are you asking about that? Medical already cleared me. I WAS NOT UNDER THE INFLUENCE! I don’t know how High Command can waste time harassin’ me about [subject was cautioned to answer the stated inquiry or punishment for failure to comply with Legal Order 29 would ensue—Xiinur].

 

 I thought we were through with this…

 

 As ordered, I am relayin’ the circumstances surroundin’ the loss of 53 D-250 Blue terrestrial vehicles, the loss of Iaggixx, and my…accusation…of inebriation on duty.

 

 Approximately ten cycles ago, I was called to one of the outer hubs, servin’ a rural area. The once-inhabitants of this region were taken care of, if not flat-out eliminated, by our forces, but High Command naturally wanted to continue surveillance of the region. The region is key to maintainin’ supply routes, and, if geological surveys prove right, rich in [exact nature of resources edited per Information Order 16—Xiinur]. While aerial surveillance is always best, the heavily wooded nature of the area needs terrestrial examination on a constant basis. Furthermore, the drones are pretty ineffective, given the rough terrain and, despite elimination activities, wildlife. So scoutin’ must be done on foot, or, more easily, through the use of the D-250 Blues.

 

 Hmn? Oh, right. I guess an office jockey wouldn’t know what a D-250 Blue is [subject was cautioned to observe proper class codes or punishment for failure to comply with Title Order 139 would ensue—Xiinur].

 

 Anyway…the D-250 Blues are a modification of the B-450 Reds. Like their original models, the Blues are rough-terrain, terrestrial vehicles ideally suited for navigatin’ non-rural areas. Unlike their originals, they don’t have external beams and can only hold two occupants max. The reduced mass makes ‘em better at navigating wooded areas, which would otherwise need a ridiculous amount of clearing to maneuver through. Heh, I knew the engineer who designed ‘em, and even though he got all sorts of rewards and extensions for his ideas, he was a real [description edited; subject was cautioned to remember the report would be read by High Command or punishment to comply with Title Order 31 Regarding References to Superiors would likely ensue—Xiinur].

 

 Long story short, the D-250 Blues are single pilot, limited-armed, agile devices.

 

 Fifty-three of ‘em crashed.

 

 When the first few reports came in, we [the Western Region Engineers—Xiinur] were called. Iaggixx didn’t think it was worth lookin’ into. A few vehicles always fall durin’ the first dozen or so megacycles in new territory. It’s always caused by the rider, though. Most of the scout’s usin’ ‘em are first-timers. They’re used to walkers or evacs or whatever and think they’re the next Ivveth the Unguarded [a famous daredevil noted for her finesse with a low-powered glider from the 81st Quadrant—Xiinur]. Also, they’re not familiar to the grounds yet, and in rough terrain they’re usually the first to discover a ditch, cliff, rock, or mound of vegetation.

 

 After a dozen or so reports, Iaggixx couldn’t ignore the calls anymore…what? Yeah, he received all of ‘em, he just didn’t respond to ‘em. Yes, he’d done that before. How often? Every time there’s a report. For how long? Long as I’d known him.

 

 Anyway, he finally decides to do somthin’ about the calls, so he has me review all the reports [copies of crash D-250 Blues reports from the Western Region attached—Xiinur]. Let me tell you, they were weird. Like, adolescent entertainment weird.

 

 Apparently, all of ‘em report seeing a huge pair of eyes before losing control of the vehicle. Some reported a musky or burned scent before crashin’. Most ended up in a tree or ditch, although a lot of ‘em had signs of impact, with the windshields, front grids, and high beams compromised. Couple were covered with different sorts of organic matter. Others just showed signs of impact from trees, boulders, or other immobile objects. Some of the riders died in the impact due to the strike. Others lasted until found, when their injuries, usually to the head or chest, finished ‘em. A bunch were found wonderin’ around the near the crashes, murmurin’ and swearin’ like they had an seven-ration of high vintage.

 

 What? Yeah, the camp stocks vintage. Lots of us drink it off-duty; it’s the middle of nowhere.  The last sortie was fifty cycles ago. We’re not goin’ to see action there. It passes the time—

 

 WHAT?

 

 No I do not drink on or before duty!

 

 We’ve been over this! I don’t need to explain myself to some pad-pushin’ [ensuing description terminated. Subject was reminded to observe proper class codes or punishment for failure to comply with Title Order 139 would ensue—Xiinur].

 

 Anyway, none of the reports indicated any of ‘em had a presence of alcohol in their systems. They just acted weird for cycles after the crash and then seemed normal again unless asked about it. Then they acted all traumatized and disoriented and weird—hm? What do I mean by weird? Well, they’d stagger and murmur and kept talking about eyes and monsters in the trees. Usually, they would also start fallin’ over if the subject wasn’t changed. That kind of weird.

 

 Anyway, Iaggixx looked over my summary of the reports and forwarded ‘em to whoever High Command had over ‘im. I think he thought that would be the end of it, but they contacted ‘im and gave him a new set of orders [a copy of Examination Order 5429 and Review Order 1763 attached—Xiinur]. They wanted us to go to each crash site, make visual records, and write-up documentation regarding the site. What a load of [description edited; subject was cautioned to remember the report would be read by High Command. Subject returned to interview before caution regarding punishment could be given—Xiinur]. So we grabbed a D-250 Blue and got busy.

 

 The first few megacycles—what? No, I don’t remember how many, it was more than three. Do you know how long it takes to review 53 crash sites? Anyway, we were a few megacycles into it. Nothin’ happened during ‘em, besides both of us getting irate and sore. D-250 Blues aren’t luxury vehicles and the work was stupid—I KNOW THE PUNISHMENT FOR LEGAL ORDERS! THE WORK WAS STILL STUPID! [Subject was offered a brief recess to calm down. He took it and the interview resumed—Xiinur].

 

 I need a drink. Don’t record that [statements recorded per Accuracy Order 19—Xiinur].

 

 Anyway, we were able to complete several reports each day, but on the last…one, Iaggixx decided we could get one more done after the sun set. I warned ‘im that most of—no—ALL of the crashes took place near dark, but he just wanted to get the job done. Can’t really blame ‘im.

 

 We were in a pretty heavily wooded area, but the entire area is heavily wooded. We got to the place, made the records, decided to go to the next place, made some more, and so on and so on until both of us were sick of the job.

 

 What? Yes, we were alone. Yes, we were tired, I just said that. Yes, it was technically past my daily point of labor. Yes, of course I wanted to relax, what are you getting—ARE YOU GOING TO BRING THAT UP AGAIN! I ALREADY TOLD YOU I WAS SOBER! WILL YOU JUST [subject was again cautioned to answer the stated inquiry or punishment for failure to comply with Legal Order 29 would ensue—Xiinur].

 

 We were tired. We were uncomfortable. We wanted to stop for the night. I started to drive us back to base. Then I saw…I saw…you gotta believe me. I wasn’t under the influence. I’d never take vintage when I was drivin’. I’d never risk my comrades or my superiors that way. I was as sober then as I am now…but…but…[subject declined offer for a recess to collect his thoughts—Xiinur].

 

 They were faint at first. Only little lights, that flickered in the corner of the eyes when I was focused on the opposite direction. Then the scent of somethin’…weird. It was organic, I think. It reminded me of an unclean robe canister. But it was sweet, too. Like, disgustin’ly sweet. Then the lights stopped avoiding us…We were driving through them, suddenly. They came in almost uniform pairs in not exactly uniform hight…Iaggixx was asleep. He didn’t see the lights. Didn’t detect the scent. Didn’t see the two that approached us, bigger and bigger…

 

 The ER 1975 [Emergency Response Team 1975—Xiinur]  say we’d been out there for nearly a cycle before they found us. Said Iaggixx died on impact. His organs just…burst from the crash. Even if he hadn’t bled out, there was…no…way…

 

 Look, Iaggixx was useless with paperwork. He was angry. He was mean. He made everyone under him do his work without even pretendin’ to give a [description deleted, but the subject, obviously distraught, was not given a warning regarding Title Order 139—Xiinur]. He was a good guy, though. I mean, I loved complainin’ about him as much as everyone else, but I always though he’d…I would never believe he’d…that I’d…

 

 Anyway, the ER Team say I was ravin’ and slaverin’ when they found me. Apparently, I could walk, but not in a coordinated way. I couldn’t answer their questions. I couldn’t tell ‘em my rank or title. I guess they managed to read my badges or talked to someone at the base. I don’t know. I don’t remember anything from the two days following the crash. But I swear, by my title and by everything I own I WAS NOT UNDER THE INFLUENCE! Look at the records! They’ll prove it! [a copy of ER Records regarding Stisa Zaix attached—Xiinur].

 

 I know it’s suspicious. I know you need an answer. And I know the bored Engineer from the Nowhere Front is the perfect victim for your inquisition. BUT IT’S NOT MY FAULT!!! I WAS SOBER! YOU HEAR ME? SOBER!

 

 [Copy of Examination Order 5429 and Review Order 1763 enclosed.

 

 Copies of crash D-250 Blues reports from the Western Region enclosed.

 

 Copy of ER Records regarding Stisa Zaix enclosed.

 

 While the subject was correct in High Command’s demand for an answer for the loss of yet another vehicle and Master Engineer, he also appears correct in his assertion of his sobriety at the time of the crash. The ER’s report indicates that he, despite contrary evidence by his behavior, did not have any trace of vintage in his system during the retrieval. Given his physical and mental state, though, Western Medic Division 567 doubts his capacity to serve effectively in the near future, and would like to apply more intense screening to test for other mental and physical inhibitors. 

 

 They also feel that the entire Western Division should begin mass chemical testing, regardless of rank. At the wreckage, the Emergency Response Team 1975 found a half-filled portable vintage canister was found on Iaggixx’s person. The team suspects the usage of said flask undoubtably contributed to his demise at the crash. Furthermore, they suspect the presence of vintage likely led to a currently unknown number of incidents and misapplications. The fear of screening will, they believe, cap this behavior.

 

 Another odd item was found at the location of the crash. It is organic in origin. It is circular, though it branches around the edges, with one particularly large branch at one end. It also contains a dark, glossy, round mass of material in its center. Science Team 8502 is currently trying to determine if it is natural or sculpted in formation—Xiinur].

 

  Stantler: Those who stare at its antlers will gradually lose control of their senses and be unable to stand.—Professor Elm, believed to be KIA in Johto.

  



6. You Thought—Kanto

Summary for the Chapter:
            Annoying alien boss used paperwork! It’s not very effective.

          
Notes for the Chapter:As always, I would like to thank the sharp-eyed beta readers/masters Shadowboxmind and Pixel3r for their input and amazing typo detecting skills.




    
    Secondary Interview Station

304 Cycles After Initial Contact

384 Cycles After Establishment

Record #895, as given by Eyewitness Elorod V’sim: Chief Supply Operator of the Eastern Region

Transcribed/edited by Supreme District Stenographer Xiinur Gog



Coming here was a mistake. There were plenty of nearby planets to choose from. So what if they had no atmosphere or water or survivable temperatures. At least they weren’t inhabited by aliens! Why…what? Oh, oh right.



As ordered, I am here to report of the missing supplies of the Eastern Region. And to warn everyone. Everyone! They’re coming, I’m sure. No, wait, they’re here! Of course they’re here! They were always here! No place is safe. No place will escape them. They’ve come. It’s just a matter of time. It’s just a matter of time! [Subject received an involuntary sedative as permitted by Inquisitor Privileges 1376. Inquisition resumed after 15 microcyles—Xiinur].



Hmm? Oh, right. The inquisition.



As ordered, I am here to explain the missing supplies from the Eastern Region. Although, I really can’t explain it. No one can. Not fully. It’s the weirdest…thing.



We—the Supplies Operators—-set up the primary supply depot in a formerly urban area. There was some concern about staying where the natives originally lived. Mmm? What concerns? Mostly of survivors. Little bit of worry about the possibility of unexploded ordinances. Some fear regarding unstable structures. But our troops were thorough. Survivors hadn’t been seen for at least 50 cycles. Large-class bombs weren’t used in the area. Not necessary. And we set up away from previous structures. We just wanted flat surfaces and access to the roads, not the “security” of the native’s brittle structures. And the space served our purpose well. Set up was completed two cycles earlier than expected.



The depot was the largest in the region. Everything from consumables to combustibles came in and out of the depot. And everything was tracked. Expertly, I may add. I brought records of the first few cycles [see enclosed records—Xiinur]. If you look at the records, you will see…[Subject spent 35 microcycles describing information already present in the enclosed records. Subject was warned to stay on topic or punishment for failure to comply with Legal Order 29—Xiinur].



Apologies. It’s just, I was so proud of myself.



Before everything went directly to the underworld.



It started small. A half-dozen metal washers from a previously opened package. Three cans of hydration rations from an unclosed cabinet. Four laundry tokens from a Clerk’s desk. Hmm? Yes. Of course I kept track of everything. I didn’t become Chief Supplier by keeping sloppy records. I brought copies of every transaction at the depot, as well as reports on every missing item [see enclosed records of missing items—Xiinur].



Gradually, things went missing more frequently. The missing items also became larger and more vital to operations. Desk supplies, transmission orbs, and data disks went missing. Two writing disks went missing from my own office, and several of my subordinates had missing items, too. Exactly three signature styluses, fifteen more writing discs, ten parchment clips…[Subject described missing objects, in detail, for 45 microcycles. Rather than list the items, I have enclosed a Subject-provided copy of all missing items—Xiinur].



The losses were disturbing, both to the efficiency of our forces in the Eastern Region and my own mental state. Never, in all of my megacycles of service, have I suffered the indignity of such losses! They were terrible! They threw off my system completely [records indicate the depot was still able to successfully function despite the loss of office supplies equal in value to approximately one-tenth of a cycle’s wages—Xiinur]. This was unacceptable! I immediately filed complains against each and every one of my workers for their incompetence! [See enclosed records of complaints against all 50 of Subject’s subordinates, as well as records of enclosed complaints being dismissed by High Council for lack of evidence—Xiinur].



Anyway, losses still happened. High Command carelessly accepted the loss of efficiency [Subject warned he was committing an M-class slander against superiors and would be punished—Xiinur]. Whoa, whoa, that’s not necessary! [Subject was alerted punishment was necessary and ordered to continue with the inquisition—Xiinur].



Any…anyway, I’m sure High Command was just…busy…with other issues. Until military equipment went missing. It started with half a case of sniper ballistics. Then a jar of explosion shells, thankfully not yet set, disappeared. Two megacycles later, our entire supply of standard K12-Orange ammunition was broken into. The thieves didn’t open the container; they just slashed through it in the messiest manner possible. I included records for all the cleanup detail [see enclosed records, which indicate it took approximately 4 microcycles to brush away damaged container parts—Xiinur]. Then repair equipment started to go. Every spare gear for D-250 Blue, B-450 Red, and B-455 Red terrestrial vehicles went missing two cycles after they arrived. No one could find any metal washer, causing a major disruption and complains among Repair Engineers. I brought records of their complaints [see enclosed records, detailing missing items and complaints—Xiinur].



The loss of repair equipment and ammunition did catch High Command’s attention, and they rightly ordered stricter security measures. I brought copies of the orders [see enclosed records—Xiinur]. We followed their standards, but even more ammunition, office supplies, and vehicle repair tools went missing. The containers were still never opened, but grotesquely cut into. So, not only did we have to spend more time working through security, we also had to take valuable time from our tasks to record all missing items and clean up damaged containers. Our efficiency took a great loss, as these records I brought show [see enclosed records, which do indeed indicate a significant loss of time and materials—Xiinur]. The armed guards, security droids, and diurnal cameras found no one who could be responsible for these thefts. That’s when we should have known. Should have known that we weren’t dealing with things we could stop. That they had come. That they…they…[Subject was warned to stay on topic or punishment for failure to comply with Legal Order 29—Xiinur].



Stay on topic? Stay on topic! They are the topic! How could you possibly believe otherwise?



Wait, wait. I know. You weren’t there. You didn’t see what I saw. Of course you could never expect…them.



Frustrated and determined to put an end to this loss of efficiency, I sent complaints to my commanders. I brought copies of the documents I sent [see enclosed records of complaints—Xiinur], but everyone seemed at a loss. So I decided to take personal action.



Without the knowledge of my companions or security, I locked myself in a warehouse that had experienced losses almost every cycle. I made a record of my plan, and I brought a copy [see enclosed copy of plan—Xiinur]. I was going to…[Subject took 74 microcycles to describe his plan, which consisted of staying watch throughout the night. See previously mentioned enclosed plan for details—Xiinur]. It did not seem to work at first…or quite a bit after the first. Everything was quiet and in its proper place. As it should always be.



Then they came.



They were quiet, low to the ground. They moved too close to the floor to set off the security droids. I doubt the cameras would even notice them. I did, though. How couldn’t I? Sets of three shining lights, set up like Aurdratt’s pyramid [Aurdratt’s pyramid is a popular symbol in the 3rd Quadrant. It consists of a triangle-like device made of two circular orbs topped with an oval. Many use it as a sign of the malicious divine—Xiinur] approached. Most of the sets avoided each other, though they sometimes would face one another for a long, silent moment. They made no noise as they traveled. No vocalizations or footsteps. Maybe they didn’t walk. I think they floated. Don’t you think they must have floated? [Subject looked at me, expecting an answer. When I gave none, he continued—Xiinur]. I stood in my hiding place, enthralled by the silent, moving lights. They kept me locked in place. They must be a source of P’oer’s thrall [P’oer is a cryptic from the 3rd Quadrant. According to a conspiracy theory, it would capture and lock victims in a hypnotic state to keep them from interfering with whatever crypts do—Xiinur], because I could do nothing to stop them.



What? That’s ridiculous! Of course I wasn’t dreaming! What? Yes I worked my entire shift before staying the night! But I was awake! How do I know? Look at my records! They show what went missing that night and I couldn’t stop them! [See enclosed records—Xiinur]. They started slashing through the containers! They leapt onto desks! They knocked over stacks of ammunition and took them!



When I finally broke the trance they kept me in, I wanted to alert security, but the creatures saw me first! The closest one let out a terrible cry. It sounded like the dying and the living merging! And then it and its fellows ran off with the equipment!



Don’t you see? These things, these creatures, they’re taking our supplies! What could they be planning? Oh, oh I get it! I see now!



They don’t just plan on building their army with our supplies! They’re also destroying our efficiency! It’s brilliant! We become weaker as they become stronger! We’ve already lost! First my beautiful supply depot, then the planet! What fools, what utter fools we were, believing the humans were the ones to fear! No wonder they didn’t have the means to stop us, with these…things…waiting for the first sign of equipment to further their malice. No wonder! No wonder!  No—[Subject received a second involuntary sedative as permitted by Inquisitor Privileges 1376, then sent to a holding chamber until further notice—Xiinur].



[Records of initial supplies and set-up of Easter Region Supply Depot enclosed.



Records of initial missing items enclosed.



Records of missing office supplies enclosed.



Records of depot’s efficiency during the initial loss of office supplies enclosed.



Records of complaints against Elorod’s subordinates enclosed.



Records of dismissal of complaints enclosed.



Recommended punishment for M-class slander enclosed.



Records of cleanup detail enclosed.



Records of missing repair equipment and ammunition enclosed.



Records of complaints enclosed. 



Records of efficiency lost enclosed.



Records of increased security orders enclosed.



Records of Subject’s complaints enclosed.

Record of Subject’s plan to detect the thieves enclosed.



While the enclosed records are numerous, I would like to include one more. Security at the supply depot at the Eastern Region submitted reports on continued losses. No one has seen “Elorod’s lights” or “pyramids.” Higher security measures recommended—Xiinur].









Meowth: Appears to be more active at night. It loves round and shiny things. It can’t stop from picking them up.—Professor Oak, Missing. Last seen in Kanto.

  


